
 1

 KING COUNTY METROPOLITAN SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
December 19, 2005 
11:45 – 2:15 p.m. 

King Street Center, 7th Floor Conference Center 
Draft Unapproved Minutes 

 
Members in Attendance  
Name Agency Title 
Sharon Hlavka City of Auburn Solid Waste Supervisor 
Bill Peloza City of Auburn Councilmember 
Alison Bennett City of Bellevue Utilities Policy Advisor 
Linda Kochmar City of Federal Way Deputy Mayor 
Rob Van Orsow City of Federal Way Solid Waste & Recycling Coordinator 
Jessica Greenway City of Kirkland Councilmember 
Elaine Borjeson City of Kirkland Solid Waste Coordinator 
Daryl Grigsby City of Kirkland Public Works Director  
Jean Garber City of Newcastle Councilmember 
Jon Spangler City of Redmond Natural Resources Division Manager 
Nina Rivkin City of Redmond Senior Policy Analyst 
Linda Knight City of Renton Solid Waste Coordinator 
Paul Haines City of Shoreline  Public Works Director 
Rika Cecil City of Shoreline Environmental Programs Coordinator 
Frank Iriarte City of Tukwila Deputy Public Works Director 
Mick Monken City of Woodinville Public Works Director 
Valarie Jarvi City of Woodinville Public Works Maintenance Supervisor 
Pete Rose City of Woodinville City Manager  

 
Others in Attendance 
Solid Waste Division 
Theresa Jennings, Director 
Theresa Koppang, Lead Planner 
Diane Yates, Intergovernmental Relations Liaison 
Tom Karston, Finance and Rates Analyst 
Kevin Kiernan, Engineering Services Manager 
Jeff Gaisford, Recycling and Environmental Services Manager 
Thea Severn,  Transfer and Transport Operations Manager 
Sandra Matteson, Solid Waste Division staff 
Gemma Alexander, Solid Waste Division staff 
  
 
King County Council Staff 
Mike Huddleston, King County Council Staff 
Peggy Sanders, King County Council Staff 
  
City Staff 
Susan Fife-Ferris, City of Bellevue 
  
  
 



 2

Call to Order 1 

MSWMAC Chair Jean Garber called the meeting to order at 12:05. 2 

 3 

Approve October Meeting Minutes and Review Agenda 4 

MSWMAC member Jessica Greenway moved approval of the November minutes. 5 

The minutes were unanimously approved. 6 

 7 

Chair Garber said that the January agenda was quite full so the Comp Plan revision 8 

update, originally scheduled for that meeting, would not be included. 9 

 10 

Letter to Regional Policy Committee (RPC) 11 

Garber said that when the RPC approved Milestone Report 3 they did so with the 12 

direction that a finalized Public/Private Characteristics Matrix would be submitted prior 13 

to the fourth report.  At the November MSWMAC meeting, it was agreed that there was 14 

no benefit to finalizing the matrix.  MSWMAC agreed to submit a refined version of the 15 

matrix with a letter to the RPC explaining its opinion on the matrix.   16 

 17 

MSWMAC member Nina Rivkin said that she had a number of editorial changes to the 18 

letter and asked if she could send those to division staff rather than using meeting time to 19 

discuss them.  MSWMAC agreed to approve the substance of the letter today.  Garber 20 

will review Rivkin’s editorial comments before the letter is submitted. 21 

 22 

MSWMAC member Bill Peloza commented that the letter refers to the matrix as Table 23 

One, but the matrix is not labeled as such.  He said the attachment should be referenced at 24 

the bottom of the letter.    25 

 26 

Rivkin commented that the letter refers to a January transmittal date for Milestone Report 27 

4, which is no longer accurate.  She suggested it be changed to say “late February.”    28 

 29 

Greenway moved approval of the letter with amendments as discussed. 30 

The motion passed unanimously. 31 



 3

 32 

Haulers’ Input on Draft Report Four 33 

Garber welcomed Jerry Hardebeck from Waste Management, Joe Casalini from 34 

Allied/Rabanco, Eddie Westmoreland from Waste Connections and Art Scheunemann 35 

from Northwest Containers. Garber said she sent two questions to the haulers in advance: 36 

1. What is your preferred system configuration and preferred role in that 37 

configuration; and how do you see yourself being compensated for that role? 38 

2. Do you believe you can operate facilities more cheaply than the public sector and 39 

if so, how? 40 

 41 

Garber said that members may ask the haulers other questions, and encouraged the 42 

haulers to share their comments on the draft report with MSWMAC.   43 

 44 

Hardebeck replied that all three companies provide solid waste services throughout the 45 

United States.  He said that Waste Management prefers a transfer system owned by King 46 

County, with intermodal and disposal services provided by the private sector.  He said 47 

that price per ton is the usual method of compensation in disposal contracts.  He added 48 

that if transfer services were contracted without flow control (guaranteed tonnage) as is 49 

done in the current Construction Demolition Landclearing Debris (CDL) contracts, that 50 

additional risk would factor into bid prices. 51 

 52 

Casalini replied that Allied is primarily interested in intermodal and disposal services.  53 

Currently they are compensated through per ton pricing for long haul disposal and would 54 

like to continue with that method.  Allied would like to make use of its existing 55 

intermodal capacity to serve King County’s waste.  If additional capital investment is 56 

necessary, it will be reflected in pricing.  Casalini said that Allied feels packages 3 and 4 57 

are workable.  They want operations to be as efficient as possible. 58 

 59 

Hardebeck commented that commercial-only transfer facilities are quicker and safer than 60 

full-service facilities.  He said full service is possible but requires separation of customer 61 

types.  He clarified that his company defines commercial and self-haul customers by 62 



 4

vehicle type – any automated vehicle is classified as commercial.  When Waste 63 

Management suggested Package 4, it intended to present a least capital cost alternative.  64 

Waste Management’s commercial only facilities consist of a metal box with four lanes 65 

and an automated scalehouse.  This is the least costly means to manage waste. 66 

 67 

Casalini agreed that separating customer types is most cost effective and eliminates 68 

numerous safety issues. 69 

 70 

Westmoreland replied Waste Connections supports a joint city/county system supported 71 

by long-term Interlocal Agreements.  He said economies of scale must be achieved to 72 

amortize the capital investments required to maintain a system that  73 

1. promotes public health, safety and the environment 74 

2. provides redundancies to guarantee smooth operations 75 

3. promotes competition 76 

 77 

Westmoreland said that Waste Connections sees its role in intermodal and long haul 78 

disposal with compensation by price per ton.  The draft of Report 4 takes a reasonable 79 

approach to long term planning for the system.  All of the packages have similar rate 80 

impacts.  Waste Connections prefers a system that is close to Package 2, with a few 81 

changes.  Westmoreland described the preferred system: 82 

 North and Rural: status quo 83 

 NE Lake Washington: close Houghton and build a new full-service facility 84 

at Eastgate 85 

 Central: rebuild Bow Lake, maintain Renton as a self-haul only station 86 

 South: build a new station 87 

 88 

Westmoreland said that because Waste Connections does not have collection routes 89 

throughout the county, tonnage would have to be guaranteed in order for it to consider 90 

providing transfer capacity.  Waste Connections prefers that the county continue 91 

operating transfer stations. 92 

 93 



 5

Solid Waste Division Engineering Services Manager Kevin Kiernan said that Waste 94 

Connections has submitted a draft comment letter on the report, which the division will 95 

make available to MSWMAC once it is finalized. 96 

 97 

Garber asked the haulers to respond to the second question: can they provide service 98 

cheaper than the county? 99 

 100 

Hardebeck replied that he thinks the answer is yes.  His company is always thinking 101 

about how to cut costs and be more competitive.  But, he added that it is impossible to be 102 

certain without a competitive procurement process.  He said Waste Management would 103 

be happy to compete with the county in a procurement process. 104 

 105 

Garber asked whether he could offer any specifics on where costs may be saved. 106 

 107 

Hardebeck replied that it would depend on how the Request for Proposal (RFP) was 108 

written.  He said that if public standards, such as 1% for art and public labor 109 

requirements, were imposed, then his company probably could not save much.  However, 110 

if the RFP allowed flexibility, his company could save a lot. 111 

 112 

Casalini replied that it depends on which services are needed.  He said that Allied 113 

absolutely could provide long haul and disposal services more cost effectively than the 114 

county.  Their system is already in place and operating and he has confidence that 115 

Allied’s existing rail contracts are superior to anything that could be newly negotiated. 116 

 117 

Garber asked about intermodal service.  Casalini replied that their current system could 118 

absorb some waste and that would be cheaper than new construction. 119 

 120 

Westmoreland replied that Waste Connections bought Northwest Containers, which 121 

provides intermodal service for solid waste and cargo.  He said their facility could 122 

provide savings compared to King County building a new dedicated facility.  He added 123 



 6

that it is better to build on what already exists – county owned and operated transfer 124 

stations and private intermodal facilities, railroad contracts, and disposal services. 125 

 126 

Garber asked if MSWMAC members had any questions. 127 

 128 

MSWMAC member Sharon Hlavka asked if any of the companies were willing to 129 

compete to operate a county-owned transfer station. 130 

 131 

Westmoreland said that his company is absolutely interested, but cautioned that careful 132 

thought is required about how best to develop that scenario. 133 

 134 

Casalini said Allied would certainly look at that opportunity. 135 

 136 

Hardebeck said that Waste Management’s understanding is that the only opportunity of 137 

this sort would be the operation of a commercial only recycling facility.  Otherwise legal 138 

issues would present a barrier.  He added that siting is Waste Management’s strength.  A 139 

small box solution is easier to site, and spreads facilities more evenly. 140 

 141 

Bellevue staff Susan Fife-Ferris asked if smaller sites have different labor needs. 142 

 143 

Hardebeck replied that commercial facilities serve professional drivers and only need 144 

staff to watch the floor and operate compactors.  Scalehouses can be unattended.  He said 145 

he does not know what the staffing requirements are for full service facilities; the county 146 

would know that. 147 

 148 

Solid Waste Division Director Theresa Jennings agreed with Hardebeck, saying that the 149 

type of customer determines staffing levels, not the size of the building. 150 

 151 

Casalini added staffing levels are higher at full service facilities because self-haul 152 

customers need more supervision and staff to move through the facility safely. 153 

 154 



 7

Westmoreland said a lot of things come into play in a system the size of King County’s.  155 

He said that in some places it makes sense to have full service facilities.  Careful 156 

planning is needed to properly separate customer types.  Other issues include siting and 157 

permitting.  Siting should be based on where waste is generated in order to decrease the 158 

total number of stations required. 159 

 160 

Greenway commented that the clarification of commercial vs. self-haul customer classes 161 

was useful.  She asked if the haulers all meant landfill disposal when they used the word 162 

disposal.  All three replied yes. 163 

 164 

King County council staff Mike Huddleston commented that 20% of tonnage is generated 165 

by self-haul customers.  Referring to packages that include uncompacted self-haul only 166 

stations, he asked the haulers how much waste within the system must be compacted to 167 

get the best long-haul price. 168 

 169 

Westmoreland replied that payload is the key factor.  He said that uncompacted self-haul 170 

waste laced throughout the system, resulting in an average payload of 28-30 tons, is 171 

acceptable and achievable. 172 

 173 

Hardebeck replied that 27 tons per container is a good goal. He said his company weighs 174 

each container at the transfer facility to maximize each load. 175 

 176 

Huddleston said that if self-haul waste wasn’t compacted, it could increase export costs. 177 

 178 

Hardebeck said it’s important to look at the overall system cost.  The investment required 179 

to install a compactor at a facility must be weighed against the operating cost of 180 

exporting uncompacted waste.  He said Waste Management’s facility takes CDL loads 181 

that are not at maximum payload every day. 182 

 183 

Westmoreland commented that the calculations for this sort of cost/benefit analysis are 184 

fairly easily done. 185 



 8

 186 

Huddleston said those calculations should be done in the report or as part of the third 187 

party review. 188 

 189 

Hlavka asked what advantage the private companies have in siting. 190 

 191 

Westmoreland replied that they don’t have a clear advantage.  While the private 192 

companies tend to work more quickly and have a track record siting intermodal facilities, 193 

the county has eminent domain and wants to work closely with the cities. 194 

 195 

Hardebeck said it depends on the RFP terms, and whether private companies are required 196 

to look at all available alternatives, as the county would be.  He added that private 197 

companies generate a revenue stream for host cities through property taxes and utility 198 

fees that the county doesn’t pay, which may make a private facility more acceptable. 199 

 200 

Casalini said the private sector would not have the stakeholder processes that the county 201 

would have, and that this could result in savings. 202 

 203 

Garber thanked the haulers for coming. 204 

 205 

Third Party Review 206 

Huddleston referred to Ordinance 14971 which calls for independent review of the Waste 207 

Export System Plan as well as Harbor Island and alternative intermodal sites.  He said 208 

council intends to hire a group of independent experts to conduct this review in a process 209 

similar to the one used for wastewater, when seven experts were convened from around 210 

the country.  Huddleston distributed a handout of the questions that were asked of the 211 

review panel in the wastewater process.  He said that the questions needed to be 212 

identified before the panel could be convened; because the types of experts brought in 213 

would be a function of the questions asked.  He said council expects that as the report 214 

goes forward, concerns will arise from MSWMAC, RPC and the council.  Questions 215 

could be technical or legal, for example, dealing with labor issues. 216 



 9

 217 

Huddleston said council has set aside funds.  Last time, consultants were hired to convene 218 

the independent panel.  Experts came for three days, were paid a per diem and required to 219 

provide a written report of their findings.  Once defined, the process took about 30 days. 220 

 221 

Garber asked when ITSG should develop questions for MSWMAC to approve as its 222 

questions for the panel.  Huddleston suggested that Report 4 should be finished first.  223 

Since the review will deal with the Waste Export System Plan, it could be May or later 224 

before the review begins.  He added that it doesn’t hurt to take note as questions arise. 225 

 226 

Garber thanked Huddleston and asked him to let MSWMAC know when the time comes 227 

to develop questions. 228 

 229 

Huddleston said ITSG recently discussed one potential issue for the review – 230 

privatization.  He said he would like to provide two reports from the Attorney General’s 231 

office on privatization; one on the ferry system and one on prisons.  He said he had 232 

marked the relevant text in a hardcopy.  233 

 234 

Intergovernmental Relations Liaison Diane Yates said she would make the reports 235 

available to MSWMAC members. 236 

 237 

Garber asked Kiernan about the question that ITSG had asked the haulers: whether the 238 

regional direct rate spread reasonably represents their cost of transfer and transportation. 239 

 240 

Kiernan said that during the process of changing the rate, both haulers testified in council 241 

hearings that their costs do not differ greatly from the regional direct rate spread.  In 242 

meetings with the division last week, they confirmed that statement.  They would not 243 

commit to an actual figure but agreed that their costs are roughly the same as the 244 

division’s costs. 245 

 246 



 10

Peloza asked about the RFP Hardebeck referred to.  Kiernan replied that it was a 247 

hypothetical Request for Proposal for disposal services.  There is no procurement process 248 

planned at this point in time. 249 

 250 

Peloza commented that the haulers don’t want to reveal very much without a 251 

procurement process, and asked if their comments today were as expected. 252 

 253 

Jennings replied that the division has met individually with the haulers and the most 254 

surprising result has been that the haulers are more interested in providing disposal than 255 

transfer service.  She said there will not be an RFP for disposal service until 2 to 3 years 256 

before export begins because disposal costs are consistently decreasing.  257 

 258 

Rivkin asked if the division should debrief MSWMAC about the haulers’ meetings. 259 

 260 

Garber suggested that in the next SWD update the division should include comments 261 

from the haulers relating to the fourth report. 262 

 263 

Draft Milestone Report 4 Discussion 264 

Garber said the division received some comments from cities on the partial draft which 265 

have not been incorporated yet because the division was concentrating on completing the 266 

draft.  The division has begun to prepare a responsiveness summary, and will provide a 267 

revised draft for the January meeting.   268 

 269 

Garber suggested that today MSWMAC review the draft chapter by chapter. 270 

 271 

MSWMAC member Alison Bennett asked how the division will respond to 272 

Westmoreland’s suggested package. 273 

 274 

Jennings said the package is very similar to Package 4, differing only at Houghton.  It 275 

will be easy for the division to analyze. 276 

 277 



 11

Garber asked what the deadline is for comments to be included in the next revision.  278 

Jennings said comments received by January 10 will be incorporated into the draft 279 

discussed at the next meeting. 280 

 281 

Bennett said that due to the Bellevue City Council meeting schedule, Bellevue will not be 282 

able to provide official comments until the end of January.  However, Bellevue staff will 283 

provide their comments by the deadline. 284 

 285 

Kiernan said the division tries to give MSWMAC its meeting materials at least one week 286 

before the meeting, and the division needs a couple of days to prepare the materials.  That 287 

is how the comment deadlines are determined.  He added that for the January revision, 288 

the level of response to comments may depend on the complexity of the comments.  The 289 

division will have time to incorporate simple changes, but there may not be time to 290 

perform additional analyses for that meeting. 291 

 292 

Jennings said that the division wants to be transparent in editing without crashing its 293 

computer system.  Line numbering may be used for reference, but Track Changes uses 294 

too much memory.   295 

 296 

Rivkin suggested that staff merge all the comments into one set of tracked changes. 297 

 298 

Solid Waste Division Lead Planner Theresa Koppang agreed that Track Changes is very 299 

useful, but said that it uses too much memory for a document of this size.  She said 300 

Chapter Two grew to 200MB when staff made edits using Track Changes.  That is why 301 

the division will prepare a responsiveness summary. 302 

 303 

Garber asked if it would be possible to break the document into separate files for each 304 

chapter, or remove the graphics to keep the file size smaller. 305 

 306 

Rivkin suggested that Garber follow up with staff after the meeting to work out a suitable 307 

method for documenting changes. 308 



 12

 309 

Peloza commented that tracking methodology is useful for simple revisions but a 310 

responsiveness summary is better for this situation because it keeps the primary 311 

document uninterrupted and readable. 312 

 313 

Garber said that in her business she prefers to receive a list of comments rather than a 314 

document in Track Changes, especially when there are multiple reviewers. 315 

 316 

Chapter One: 317 

Rivkin asked about the references to the Comp Plan in the Introduction and in Next 318 

Steps.  Jennings replied that the report will be transmitted in February.  This month the 319 

Comp Plan update will begin with a letter to cities. 320 

 321 

Garber said she thought the Additional Issues referenced on page 4 was supposed to be a 322 

working document.  She asked if MSWMAC really wanted to include it as an appendix.   323 

 324 

Rivkin said she would like it to be attached as an appendix, but wanted time to review the 325 

information in bold print. 326 

 327 

Peloza commented that the Appendices should be dated.  Garber agreed. 328 

 329 

MSWMAC member Jon Spangler asked if the appendices are available electronically.  330 

Koppang replied that they are on an ftp site.  She added that the file is large and may take 331 

a long time to download.  She said that the division can send the file on a disk if anyone 332 

has trouble downloading it. 333 

 334 

 [http://www.metrokc.gov/extranet/dnrp/swd/Report_4-Appendices_Dec2005-Draft.pdf] 335 

 336 

Chapter Two: 337 

Garber encouraged members to ask questions about anything they don’t understand and 338 

to raise any issues that merit discussion. 339 



 13

 340 

Bennett commented on page 19, Package One.  She said that ITSG only applied the LOS 341 

criteria to existing stations.  They didn’t do analysis on self-haul only facilities.  Koppang 342 

replied that the division has prepared a draft table of new analysis applying LOS criteria 343 

to self-haul only stations.  Bennett commented that analysis of traffic issues has not been 344 

done for the Eastgate site.  345 

 346 

Bennett said she was surprised that the overall costs were so close.  She said that if cost is 347 

not a distinguishing factor, then the most effective system should be chosen.  She 348 

suggested that Package One could work if Eastgate were not developed and the existing 349 

Factoria site could somehow continue to be used for a full service facility.  This would 350 

meet both Bellevue’s and Kirkland’s interests. 351 

 352 

Kiernan said that such a package would require a lot of work between the division and 353 

Bellevue because a previous EIS co-authored by Bellevue identified wetlands and other 354 

limitations to continued use of the Factoria site as a full service facility. 355 

 356 

Greenway said that Bennett’s suggestion should be analyzed as a new package, not as a 357 

replacement for Package One. 358 

 359 

Garber agreed, saying that any new suggestions will be considered as new packages since 360 

the first four packages have already been approved by MSWMAC and analyzed. 361 

 362 

Rivkin said that a construction schedule should accompany the statement about 363 

scheduling for each package.   364 

 365 

Kiernan said those schedules are available. 366 

 367 

Rivkin asked what the second sentence on page 17 meant.  Kiernan said that most 368 

building codes require buildings to be brought up to current code if improvements costs 369 

are greater than the value of the building. 370 



 14

 371 

Greenway commented that Eastgate, like other new stations in the packages, would have 372 

to meet all LOS criteria if it was developed. 373 

 374 

Kiernan said that language in the report would be changed to say that all new facilities 375 

will be designed to meet all LOS criteria.   376 

 377 

Rivkin referred to page 6, where the four functions of the transfer system is listed.  She 378 

commented that this list seems conclusionary and asked if they were factual.   379 

 380 

Garber commented that statements like these, which are taken from the Comp Plan, 381 

should use references. 382 

 383 

Bennett asked that the packages not be attributed to their source.  Garber agreed. 384 

 385 

MSWMAC member Frank Iriarte said that Packages 1-3 describe rerouting self-haul 386 

customers to Renton during construction at Bow Lake.  He said it seems likely that some 387 

of them will go to Algona instead. 388 

 389 

Rivkin said the paragraphs on co-location seem to conclude that it isn’t feasible.  390 

Jennings replied that is not the case. 391 

 392 

Garber suggested changing “constraints” to “site requirements.”  Kiernan agreed, saying 393 

that language more clearly shows the intent of the paragraph. 394 

 395 

MSWMAC member Daryl Grigsby suggested that since many people don’t know that the 396 

tipping fee doesn’t cover the full cost of self-haul service, it could be useful to having the 397 

actual cost called out.  Garber agreed. 398 

 399 

Rivkin wondered about the tipping point where providing self-haul service becomes so 400 

expensive that rethinking the policy becomes necessary. 401 



 15

 402 

Kiernan said it is interesting to note that 80% of the tonnage at transfer stations is 403 

commercial while 80% of the traffic is self-haul.  He added that the one impact the 404 

division cannot mitigate is vehicle traffic. 405 

 406 

Greenway asked how much self-haul traffic comes from people cleaning out garages and 407 

how much is people without curbside service. 408 

 409 

Solid Waste Division Recycling and Environmental Services Manager Jeff Gaisford said 410 

that in past customer surveys 85% of self-haul customers have curbside service and are 411 

using the transfer station for activities such as cleaning out the basement. 412 

 413 

Jennings said that 1-2% of transfer station customers are self-haul businesses, and 18% 414 

are residential self-haulers.  She said Seattle is an excellent example of a jurisdiction that 415 

has mandatory curbside collection of garbage and recyclables, but has seen no decrease in 416 

the need for self-haul service. 417 

 418 

Rivkin said there could be alternatives to self-haul service, such as increased special 419 

collection events.  She said there may be ways to meet the need without the capital costs. 420 

 421 

Kiernan said there is a report in the MSWMAC notebook on self-haul service.  He said 422 

self-haul will be a significant topic for discussion in the Comp Plan revision, which will 423 

be done before significant capital investments are made.  The timing of the planning and 424 

facility design processes dovetails very well. 425 

 426 

Garber said that the discussion of self-haul is very interesting but in the interest of time 427 

she would like to stop here and return to the report.  She encouraged MSWMAC 428 

members to read the report and submit comments to the division.  In the remaining time 429 

today she would like members to identify items for discussion and clarification. 430 

 431 

 432 



 16

Chapter Three: 433 

Bennett said the third chapter is very short, despite its meaty topic, and last week ITSG 434 

discussed how to make the chapter more meaningful.  She said the current draft is a 435 

superficial overview without any analysis.  She said she understands the legal issues on 436 

the topic of labor, but the chapter needs more information on relative costs. 437 

 438 

Garber agreed, saying her city council also wants cost information. 439 

 440 

Jennings asked for clarification of what kinds of cost information – capital costs, tipping 441 

fees?  She said the haulers won’t provide numbers, even in individual meetings.  She 442 

added that Huddleston has suggested this chapter is particularly suited to third party 443 

analysis, and she agrees. 444 

 445 

Rivkin said the last sentence of the chapter, dealing with policy should either be 446 

expanded or removed. 447 

 448 

Jennings agreed and said the division would add text identifying policy issues. 449 

 450 

Garber said that from the standpoint of environmental review, case law suggests that if a 451 

private company is under contract to a public agency, the company is considered to be 452 

performing a governmental function and is subject to the same regulatory requirements as 453 

the public sector, including the need to evaluate alternative sites. 454 

 455 

Huddleston added that in the materials he reviewed about privatization of prisons, private 456 

companies under contract to the state were considered an arm of the state. 457 

 458 

Greenway said she believed MSWMAC had already decided that private companies 459 

should be held to public standards whether or not it was required by law. 460 

 461 

Jennings commented that if requirements are the same, the haulers said today that there is 462 

no cost difference between public and private. 463 



 17

 464 

Greenway added that it seems like private service could cost more because private 465 

companies require a profit margin. 466 

 467 

Huddleston commented that if industry was really cheaper, they wouldn’t be using public 468 

transfer stations.  He added that many of the perceived differences between public and 469 

private do not exist, for example labor, where the same unions represent public and 470 

private solid waste workers. 471 

 472 

Garber said Chapter Three stands out as different from the rest of the report and needs 473 

more detail. 474 

 475 

Chapter Four: 476 

Garber said that on page 39 it should be explicitly stated that rent is included in the 477 

calculations of savings from the extended life of Cedar Hills due to early export. 478 

 479 

Kiernan said that rent is embedded in the division’s operating cost. 480 

 481 

Rivkin commented that rent payments continue for a longer period of time if Cedar Hills’ 482 

life is extended. 483 

 484 

Kiernan agreed, adding that the additional rent is included in the analysis. 485 

 486 

Bennett said that Bellevue has hired a consultant who is evaluating the sensitivity 487 

analysis in Chapter 7, and getting different results.  She suggested that the division’s 488 

economist and Bellevue staff meet to review the numbers. 489 

 490 

Garber agreed that it was a good idea.  Huddleston said the county appreciates the offer 491 

and that it will be extremely helpful for the third party review. 492 

 493 

Garber asked if there was anything else that could not wait until the January meeting. 494 



 18

 495 

Jennings said that the division’s economist would be happy to meet with any of the cities 496 

to review the data together.  497 

 498 

Adjourn 499 

The meeting was adjourned at   2:10 p.m. 500 

 501 

Submitted by: 502 

Gemma Alexander, SWD Staff 503 


